ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 19, 2008
2:30 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Chair

Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair - via tel econference
Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Gary W/ ken
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 190

"An Act requiring mnors 13 through 17 years of age who are not

traveling acconpanied by a parent or guardian to present

identification and to have authorization from a parent or

guardi an before receiving a ticket froman airline enployee."
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 189
"An Act nmaking special appropriations for bridge repairs and
construction and road construction; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 190

SHORT TI TLE: M NORS TRAVELI NG ALONE BY Al R
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 08

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) TRA, JUD

02/ 19/ 08 (S) TRA AT 2:00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 189

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP.: BRI DGES, SERVI CE ROADS, TRAILS
SPONSOR(s) : SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/08

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 19, 2008



01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) TRA, FIN
02/ 19/ 08 (S) TRA AT 2: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 190 and SB 189.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 189.

JOHN DUFFY, Bor ough Manger

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough

Wasi |l a, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 189.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R ALBERT KOOKESH called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:30:46 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators W el echowski, a son, Cowdery — via
t el econference, and Kookesh.

SB 190-M NORS TRAVELI NG ALONE BY AIR

2:30:46 PM
CHAIR ALBERT KOOKESH announced SB 190 to be up for
consi derati on.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, sponsor of SB 190, said the intent of
SB 190 is to provide protection for mnor children by keeping
their parents or guardians in the loop when it conmes to air
travel in the state of Alaska. He introduced this when a news
report revealed that an Al askan fermal e under the age of 18 was
able to obtain a ticket, board an aircraft and |eave the state
wi t hout the consent or know edge of her parent's. He stated:

In this age of <child Internet predators and the
constant possibility that a young person may be
encouraged to travel to neet sonebody who intends to
inflict harm upon them the protections in SB 190 need
to be seriously considered. In researching the

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 2- February 19, 2008



regulations and policies of wvarious air carriers,
there appears to be no clear and consistent ticket
travel policy for children between the ages of 13 and
18 years old. SB 190 seeks to establish such a policy
in a statute.

He pointed out that the original bill exenptions for mnors
under the authority of the state agencies was not included, so
he encouraged the commttee to |ook favorably on the anmendnent
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) will propose
to correct this.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said even though the federal governnent is
the main setter of policy for operations of airports and
airlines in the U S., he thought the issue warranted discussion
in the Alaska legislature so that parents mght be a little bit
nmore in the loop and perhaps in control of their mnor children
travel ing.

2:33:50 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he was aware of any preenption
issues the airlines would have from federal rule. He was
wondering how this would actually work and if airline conputer
systens have to be changed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied the federal law is primarily directed
at asking for an ID when going through security and he thought
there m ght be sonme issues there, but he has tried to target the
point of receiving a ticket from the enployee. He didn't know
what could be done about soneone purchasing a ticket in cash or
on |ine.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how “receiving a ticket” is defined.
He buys his tickets by credit card on line and when he gets to
the airport he goes to a kiosk to actually get his ticket.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied the best they can do is hope that a
kid doesn't have a credit card or that they have parental
perm ssi on.

SENATOR OLSON asked how he canme up with the age of 17 as being
the break off point.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied that the drafter came up with the

federal governnent’'s paraneters of having to show ID to get into
the secure part of the airport.

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 3- February 19, 2008



SENATOR OLSON asked what about kids going to college who are
under 17.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if they were going to college, why
woul dn’t the parents give their perm ssion. Mst college bound
students are 17 or 18 years of age and would be past the
t hreshol d for approval anyhow.

SENATOR OLSON asked how air taxi operators would be treated in
rural Al aska where the parents may not be in any kind of contact
with them

2:40: 17 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT replied they would be covered under this
bill. A child comng hone for Christmas from M. Edgecunbe, for

i nstance, would have parental approval. Small carriers would
have to check for parental approval at the tinme of ticket
purchase at the counter.

SENATOR OLSON said kids buying tickets with cash would always
say they have their parents’ approval and asked if he had heard
of any opposition to this bill fromthe transportation sector.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied no one had contacted his office yet.

SENATOR OLSON asked what the penalty for the airlines is if they
don’t do this.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied the  bill doesn' t talk about
penal ties, but he's open to it.

SENATOR OLSON asked how nmany ot her states have adopted this type
of | egislation.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied he was not aware of any.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what type of photo ID is available
for 14 years ol ds and under.

SENATOR THERRI AULT answered school |1 Ds and state |Ds.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if an airline allows a 14 year old on
its plane, do they have any obligation to check the witten
aut horization fromthe parent to confirmit and if they don't do
that is the airline liable in sone way if sonething happens to
the child.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 19, 2008



SENATOR THERRI AULT replied he didn't think there would be any
nore liability than exists now.

2:44: 04 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  asked what would happen in energency
situations and could this requirenent be waived for a nedica
energency when a mnor doesn’t have tinme to get consent fromhis
parents. He mght be visiting with relatives, for instance.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied if he was visiting with a relative
that relative could be the guardian. If the mnor has to be
nmedi vaced, he didn’'t know if the patient or the nedical facility
pur chased the ticket.

2:46: 43 PM

SENATOR OLSON said this would be very cunbersone for air tax

operators and either wanted to wait to from them or an
exenption. SENATOR OLSON said he had flown plenty of nmedivacs
and none of them paid in advance.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI agreed and said he thought the bill had
good intentions, but needed some worKk.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he thought the conmttee mght want to
consi der an exenption for rural Al askans traveling, since a |ot
of children travel without their parents’ permssion there, and
he didn’t know if luring children to a hub in Alaska was a
probl em versus luring themout of state.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked if he intended to target young people trying
to |leave the state of Alaska on the major airlines rather than

the small airlines that Senator O son was talking about. He
didn't think it was a problem in rural Al aska and |anguage in
the bill already said a young person traveling on a return

portion into the state i s exenpt.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he would welconme |anguage to address
t hat concern

SENATOR COADERY asked if the airlines have any position on this
bill.

CHAI R KOOKESH said he would ask the airlines between now and the
next hearing.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if that would include the ferry system and
t he crui se ships.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2008



CHAIR KOOKESH replied they weren't talking about boats; they
were tal king about airline tickets specifically.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how the bill deals with the foreign
airlines.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied that it would affect any foreign
airlines comng to Alaska. He had sone discussion with his staff
about ferries and cruise ships and decided that the separation
bet ween the nodes of transportation is if his teenager snuck out
of the house at mid-night he could be in Florida by the tine he
woke up in the norning. If he got on a ferry, he wouldn't get
too far by the next norning.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if staff was going to work on a CS,
because he wanted them to consider the issue of mnors in state
cust ody.

CHAI R KOOKESH set SB 190 asi de and work on sone of the issues.

SB 189- APPRCP. : BRI DGES, SERVI CE ROADS, TRAILS

2:52:40 PM
CHAI R KOOKESH announced consi deration of SB 189.

SENATOR THERRI AULT, sponsor of SB 189, said it was introduced to
spur sone discussion in the legislature on capital needs for
road infrastructure and bridge infrastructure in particular. The
second section addr esses concerns from Departnent of
Transportation and Publ i c Facilities ( DOTPF) desi gn
professionals. It was spurred by the collapse of a major bridge
in Mnnesota |last year and the fact that bridge infrastructure
all across the nation is in serious need of repair.

He explained that appropriations for road infrastructure are
dealt with by the Finance Conmittee because those are capita
appropriations. However, he thought the subject of road and
bridge infrastructure needed discussion specifically in the
Transportation Comrittee. He asked the drafter to nmke that

di scussion the focus of the bill and didn't expect it to really
“get legs” and shoot through the system He suggested a figure
of $25 mllion for bridge infrastructure on the state highway

network. 1In addition, he heard from a nunber of DOIPF design
prof essional s about the desire to refund a program that has been
on the state books for 20-30 years called the Local Service
Roads and Trails Program that divvies up general funds into al

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 6- February 19, 2008



regions of the state to care for snaller basic transportation
needs. It is 100 percent state funding.

2:55: 47 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT renenbered back to when he was an aide in the
| egi sl ature, he would routinely ask DOTPF about a little road
connector that was between road projects that just nmade sense or
a particular intersection that needed a little work. He was
al ways anmazed, in going through the federal system at the
length of tinme it took to design a project and the ultimate
expense of building it when it seened to be fairly mnor. This
fall he spoke to a nunber of DOIPF design professionals in
Fai rbanks and couple of them said they were also frustrated by
that and the fact that because the state was depending on a 90
percent match from the federal government for its road noney, it
had to junp through all their hoops and that drove the expense
up even nore. So they indicated to himthat they didn't need to
reinvent the wheel and that a program was already on the books,
but it just hadn't been funded for over 10 years. It would dole
nmoney out through a formula to all the regions of the state to
do these little fixes in a much tinelier and | ess costly nmanner.
Section 2 of SB 189 speaks to this fund.

2:58: 04 PM

He said DOTPF has provided a list of bridges along with sone
pictures. The pictures showed that sone of the bridges have
maj or structural failures. He said keeping up w th maintenance
seened to be a human failing whether it’s our own personal
infrastructure or the state infrastructure.

SENATOR COWDERY said lots of heavy nodules are built in
Anchorage and maybe hundreds had been hauled up to the North
Slope this year. They have a route to follow, but they are far
heavi er than anything el se that travels the road.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he sensed that DOTPF keeps in mnd that
it needs at |east one route between the state’s ports and the
North Slope to nake sure these heavy nodul es can be transport ed.
They need to be m ndful of having a strong transportation system
ready to support building a natural gas pipeline. “lInvestnent in
our bridge infrastructure now woul d be noney well spent.”

3:03:35 PM
SENATOR OLSON asked who woul d contribute to this pot of noney.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied because it tal ks about the state road
network it would all come from general funds; it would also

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 19, 2008



relieve the DOTPF personnel from junping through the extra hoops
required to get federal noney. He said he would also consider
adding a separate pot of noney to help municipalities deal wth
some of their bridge infrastructure that is not part of the
state network if the commttee wanted to have sone kind of a
mat ch.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if he had a list of Anchorage roads that
are state roads and nunicipal roads in Mt Su.

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied that DOIPF could better address the
guestion of state roads and John Duffy, MatSu Borough Manager,
coul d address Mat Su roads.

He said the $25 mllion in the bill talks about bridges
specifically, but the second section of the bill proposes a
separate pot of noney that could be used by DOIPF to fund
i nprovenents to the state road network. He offered to work with
DOTPF to get a conplete |ist of the state road networKk.

3:06: 48 PM
AVES THOWMPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
supported SB 189 and stated, "The sinple truth is that if you

got it, a truck brought it.” In the normal course of their
busi ness, highways and bridges are the inportant |ink that
allows them to nove freight. In light of the potential for a

gasline, the association identified inprovenent of the state’s
infrastructure as one of the nobst inportant projects to insure
t hat hi ghways and in particular, bridges, are ready to allow the
transport of the hundreds if not thousands of |oads. He has
found through experience, that one old or substandard bridge can
be the weak |ink in an entire system timng is everything and
it’s critical to nove forward to elimnate any “choke points” in
the state's transportation system Further, he said, it's clear
that federal funding wll not neet Alaska s transportation
infrastructure needs in neither the short nor the long term So,
Al aska needs to invest sone of its dollars in it; he felt that
given the enornous need, the appropriation should be even
hi gher .

3:10:11 PM

JOHN DUFFY, Borough Manger for the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough,
supported SB 189. He was encouraged that they are considering
developing a long-term funding solution for the state’'s
transportation system He hoped along wth considering funding
for bridge maintenance, they would consider the creation of a
| ocal bridge appropriation program to address non-state bridges

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 8- February 19, 2008



that are an inportant part of the state’s overall transportation
system They are willing to provide a local match for such a
program and he said the MatSu Borough Assenbly had already
appropriated funds for such inprovenents.

He st at ed:

An effective and efficient transportation systemis a
basic requirenment for growing econom es. W t hout
adequate roads and bridges, our transportation system
wi || be hanpered by congestion which results in higher
costs of doing business through the long travel-tine
delays. O her problens associated with poor bridges
i nclude higher fatalities and injury rates that result
in higher health costs and higher insurance costs, |ow
wor k productivity....

He said the cost of living increases wth an aging
infrastructure. For exanple, many bridges in the Matsu Borough
have been “D’' rated because of their structural conditions. As a
result, commercial vehicles such as fuel trucks, building
delivery trucks, freight delivery vehicles, anbulances and fire
trucks are not able to use these bridges. They are unable to
clear the bridges of snow because of the weight restrictions

Citizens now rely on pickup trucks to plow snow and snow
machi nes and sleds to nove these close when an energency occurs.
Many citizens nust provide their own fire response.

MR. DUFFY said other comunities throughout Al aska share this
situation and face simlar challenges. He said the MatSu Bor ough
presently maintains about 40 bridges and this is paid for by
| ocal taxpayers. The existing bridge inspection program is
conducted by the State DOTPF for bridges of 25 ft. or |onger
while the borough conpletes inspections on roads |ess than 25
ft. Inspections are conducted by both parties every two years.

MR. DUFFY said the MatSu Borough taxpayers pay about $11.2
mllion for these inprovenents and nuch of these funds are
dedicated to day-to-day nmintenance. The Assenbly recently
appropriated $400,000 for bridge repair, but wunfortunately,
their bridge repair needs are about $3.6 nillion.

He concluded by again putting forward his request for funding
| ocal bridge repair with a provision or requirenent for |ocal
match in the form of cash, materials such as gravel, right-of-
way and in-kind which would encourage |ocal governnents to match
state funds.

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 9- February 19, 2008



SENATOR CONDERY asked if the Mat Su Borough charges for gravel on
the state’s road system

MR. DUFFY replied that nost gravel for local projects is donated
if it makes economc sense. He said the MatSu Borough donated
all of the gravel used on the Pt. MacKenzie project. On state
projects, if a gravel source is available, they would work with
DOTPF to cone to sone reasonabl e agreenent.

3:16:10 PM
CHAI R KOOKESH found no further questions or coments and said he
intended to pass SB 189 out at the next neeting.

There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Kookesh adjourned the neeting at 3:16:17 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 19, 2008



